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29th March 2005 

Dear Dr Boyce,

Thank you for your reply to my request for information concerning the college’s investments. Based on the Freedom of Information Act (FOIA), I would like to appeal your decision not to reveal the information I requested.

Aspects of your response seem to rest on a misunderstanding of the implications of the FOIA. Under the FOIA, the college has an obligation not only to supply documents which it holds, but also information which is contained within, or can be compiled from, such documents, provided the information is not exempt and that compiling it does not exceed the cost-limit specified under the FOIA. This misunderstanding can be seen in the second paragraph of your response, as well as the sixth paragraph and the second sentence of the third paragraph.  On these grounds, I wish you to reconsider your decision not to disclose the information which you refer to in those parts of your letter.

Those requests, to briefly recap, are first that you disclose an explanation with specific detail of the funds, pools and companies involved, based on the recorded information you do hold, of the various funds and pools within which St John's holds investment funds and other ways in which the St John's owns portions of companies which are not its direct subsidiaries (i.e. my point (i) in my first letter).  Secondly, although the college does not have a list of all documents that St John’s holds relating to its investments, it was an implication of my request that such a list be compiled from the recorded information you do hold. Thirdly, I reiterate my request that a list of shares which the college holds directly be compiled. 

You invoke exemption under Section 41 in response to the three seperate questions which you reference in the last sentences of the third, fourth, and fifth paragraphs of your letter. Please tell me exactly what is covered by any confidentiality agreements that would lead to an actionable breach of confidence, who they are with and when they were signed. I would like to request copies of the terms of all confidentiality agreements relating to information about your investments, specifically including the date on which these terms were agreed upon. With reference to the fourth and fifth paragraphs of your letter, I would like to point out that even if information is held in documents containing exempt information, the college is obliged to disclose the non-exempt sections of such documents. Please forward me photocopies of documents which answer my questions, with any confidential sections deleted.

Furthermore, I ask you to reconsider each of your applications of the exemption, and whether it actually applies to the extent you suggest. I note that the government has released a best practice document in which it says that Public Authorities should only enter in to actionable-breach-of-confidence agreements when it is absolutely necessary. Given that numerous Public Authorities, including Oxford colleges, have considered it appropriate to give a full public account of their indirect financial holdings, it seems very unlikely that there was an absolute need for St John’s to enter into such agreements.

I also ask you to reconsider your assessment of the weight of the Public Interest in favour of disclosure of these points, and note also that the common law of confidentiality includes a Public Interest test. A recent survey conducted by St John’s JCR showed that 77% of JCR and MCR students agree (57% of whom strongly agree) that information on the investments held by St John’s College should be transparent and open. Furthermore, decisions about the college’s investments directly affect students at St John’s, because we benefit from your investment returns through the support the college provides. The public interest test involves helping to ensure that there is informed public debate about significant decisions, especially to ensure participation in decisions affecting the public. I therefore ask you to incorporate into your reconsideration of the above points, a reappraisal of the Public Interest considerations at issue.

For the reasons stated above, I ask you to reconsider each of the questions in my original request, which you will find attached.

I further consider your refusal at our last meeting to disclose documents including minutes of meetings, in which the relationship between Freedom of Information obligations and investment information are considered, to be contrary to the FOIA and would therefore like to formally request these documents.

I look forward to hearing from you within twenty working days. Please address your reply to the above address if it is sent before 13th April, and after that date to my pigeon-hole at St John’s. I am happy to receive information in whatever format is most convenient for you, though if any documents are to have information cut from them, please provide photocopies. 

Please e-mail me at the above address to confirm receipt of this letter.

Yours sincerely,

Anne-Marie O’Reilly

